
Oak Bluffs Planning Board

Meeting Minutes

March 24, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. at the Oak Bluffs Council on Aging

Members in attendance: Brian Packish (Chairman), Robert Fehl (Vice Chair), Ewell Hopkins

Members absent: Erik Albert, Kris Chvatal

Staff in attendance: MacGregor Anderson (Clerical Assistant)

Chairman Brian Packish called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

Approval Not Required Form A: Christopher Welch, 14 Keystone Road, map 38-9-1

Mr. Welch presented his plans to the Board and explained that he and his siblings had sold a lot adjacent
to his own, and he was moving a small piece of land to allow access to an old cart path as a driveway.  
Chairman Packish noted this would create an unbuildable lot, and Mr. Welch explained that the small lot
was being transferred to his own lot.  Member Fehl made a motion to approve the plan.  Member 
Hopkins seconded.  The vote was 3-0 to endorse the plan as ANR.

Walter Vail building committee request for planning board appointee

Mr. Vail was unable to attend the meeting.  Mr. Anderson explained that the building committee 
required a Planning Board appointee.  Chairman Packish said his feeling was that when there was a 
building to be built, the Board would appoint a representative.  Historically, they were created for 
projects that had gone through the full public process to oversee the building.  Member Hopkins did not 
feel comfortable giving legitimacy to a building committee with a Planning Board member under the 
circumstances.  Member Fehl agreed.  Chairman Packish asked Mr. Anderson to let Mr. Vail know that 
when it was time to build something the Planning Board would appoint a member.

Potential new Town Hall: update on survey and education

Member Fehl said all the recommended changes from the last meeting had been incorporated and the 
survey was complete.  He felt the input had been invaluable.  He told the Board that he would need to 
pay $26 a month to Survey Monkey if this were to be hosted by them online.  Chairman Packish asked 
Mr. Anderson to ask Robert Whritenour for the funding to cover Survey Monkey, clerical costs, copying, 
mailing and the like.  He also asked Mr. Anderson to invite Mr. Whritenour to the next meeting.  He 
explained that if they were going to invest $7 million in a new town hall, some expense was reasonable 
for outreach.  Member Fehl asked about distributions spots, and Mr. Anderson confirmed the Library, 
the Town Hall and the Senior Center were ready to take surveys.  Chairman Packish suggested running 
the survey from April 1 to May 1 to reduce Survey Monkey costs to one month.  Chairman Packish said 
he would approve the $26 because the next meeting wasn’t until after Town Meeting.  The Board then 
finalized online outreach as well as hard copy distribution logistics.  Mr. Anderson said that Skip Finley of
the Gazette would promote the project once he was given details, which would be provided after the 
meeting.

Master Plan update



Chairman Packish noted that Mr. Chvatal was not in attendance, and said that he wanted to take real 
action.  He was ready to move this along.  He asked Mr. Anderson to ask Mr. Chvatal where he was in 
the process, and if he wanted to be part of it that was great, but he wanted it moving forward whether 
Mr. Chvatal was available or not.  

Rescheduling of April 14 meeting due to election conflict

Mr. Anderson noted that a super majority was going to be needed for the Island Inn special permit and 
there was a ZBA conflict on the 21st, which could preclude Member Chvatal.  The Board agreed to meet 
on April 21 and April 28.  

Board Member Updates

Member Hopkins, as appointee to the Water District, said the authority was going full force with their 
chosen well site location.  Member Hopkins said he told the District that he needed answers on Zone 2 
and ownership of the proposed well site lot.  He was pleased Mr. Whritenour, Town Administrator, had 
become involved.  He explained this was going to be at the intersection of the Land Bank property and 
the two properties to the left of the Southern Woodlands from County Road.  Member Hopkins said the 
Town of Oak Bluffs owned the lot where the Land Bank proposed the site.  Mr. Whritenour agreed they 
needed to determine who owned the land.  The Water District felt the Town did not own the land.

Member Hopkins said the Zone 2 border, which stopped at County Road, would balloon to Edgartown 
Vineyard Haven Road.  Member Hopkins said the water works building was going to be undergoing 
construction, and felt planning was needed at the Town level, especially with Featherstone planning 
changes.  He felt it was important from an access standpoint.  He also said he felt it was important to 
take a closer look before the town lost 52 acres without review.  Chairman Packish said he was glad 
Member Hopkins was involved and that the Board had been very clear with their position on Zone 2.  

Member Fehl spoke of the previous evening’s meeting, saying he was not clear on the HPP process with 
the All Island Planning Board.  Chairman Packish explained that the RFP would be part of his update.  
Member Fehl said he felt the subcommittee should not move ahead without the knowledge of the 
entire All Island Planning Board. 

Chairman Packish said the HPP had been an interesting discussion.  He summarized that The Affordable 
Housing Committee said it was great to work on the HPP but they were going to decide if they would 
adhere to it or not.  Chairman Packish said that he had made some strong statements in support of 
working on an HPP as an Island, or hiring somebody to do it as it was an expensive process.  He said the 
housing needs assessments had provided the starting point, so it came down to somebody needing to fill
out the documents, and they’d asked the MVC to do that.  Then it came down to each town doing an 
executive summary including statements of goals.  He said he had issues with this, it created another 
planning document that would gather dust on the shelf, and he was interested in sticks and bricks, 
building housing.  He said he told the HPP committee that he wasn’t 100% convinced Oak Bluffs needed 
this, but would ask his board.  He felt if there were the people to do the work he would support it, and 
the next step was for the MVC to get the money.  The consultant would then work with each town and 
hold hearings.  You could not do an Island HPP.  It had to be done by town.  The consultant could 
reconcile them after.  The RFP would go out around April 1st.  It came down to costing no money, the 
MVC would manage the process, and they would get professionals to facilitate housing discussions 
specific to Oak Bluffs.  Chairman Packish asked Mr. Anderson to reach out to the Affordable Housing 
Committee and the Selectmen to have a forum of all three on the topic some time shortly after Town 
Meeting.  



Member Fehl said this information helped him tremendously, as he did not want decisions made by a 
subcommittee.  Chairman Packish assured him this would not happen under his watch.

Chairman Packish updated the Board on Streetscape saying they were completing their survey and were 
reconciling it with phase one of the project.  He said he felt the complete engineered survey of the 
entire area was of real value to many parties.  It was $25,000 well spent.

Chairman Packish said Lagoon Ridge had been delayed at the MVC because Mr. Danielson had not 
provided the required documents.  Chairman Packish said the MVC was having the same problems they 
had, with references to informal things and vague discussions.  Mr. Danielson had asked to be put on 
the Planning Board agenda to begin the process of discussing his project.  Chairman Packish declined 
this request, saying he was keeping to the standard Board position of not working on anybody’s permit 
until it came out of the MVC.  

Chairman Packish said he attended a North Bluff meeting at the request of Dr. Jason Lew with Robert 
Whritenour and Walter Vail where more concerns were shared.  He said discussion was still taking place 
on the subject.

Member Fehl asked Mr. Anderson and the Board how to gain greater access to incoming and outgoing 
e-mail.  Mr. Anderson explained that he erred on the side of forwarding e-mails to Board Members but 
did filter a lot, giving an example of a Featherstone proposal that might or might not come before the 
Board.  He encouraged the members to come in to the office to review his filtering.  Chairman Packish 
said he did not want to develop people’s projects for them, and in the past applicants would say “I 
talked to the Planning Board on this”…and that was the reason for the change in procedure.  He didn’t 
want people shaping the conversation before the meetings.  In the case of Featherstone, Mr. Anderson 
had done the right thing, where he pointed out some potential issues before the project came before 
the Board.    

Member Hopkins said that the MVC had been working with Featherstone on this project, which he 
objected to, as they should have come to the Planning Board first.  

Chairman Packish said he wanted a situation where projects started with the building inspector and Mr. 
Anderson, so that by the time it reached the Planning Board, it was ready, not for a rubber stamp, but to 
avoid a proposal that was illegal to begin with.  He wanted a planning department eventually, where the 
Board made the hard decisions.  He said that didn’t happen at the Selectmen, or the ZBA, where things 
reached them that still had basic legal questions.  This was where Mr. Anderson could bring the most 
value, something that hadn’t happened before.  He encouraged Member Fehl to meet with Mr. 
Anderson, to pick his threshold, and it was fine if it were every e-mail.  Mr. Anderson said the e-mail was 
public record and he had no problem providing remote access, so long as people agreed not to send or 
delete anything.  Member Fehl agreed.

Chairman Packish said he wanted to revisit Town e-mail addresses for Board Members.  He said he felt 
really uncomfortable sending e-mails from his business account, and he’d brought this up before with 
the Town.  He wanted it brought back to the forefront and resolved.  He asked Mr. Anderson to tell Mr. 
Whritenour that they needed this.  Chairman Packish also asked that they ask for business cards again as
well.  Member Hopkins said he thought the social media policy could be causing discomfort with Town 
e-mail addresses.  He said the short-term workaround was to send e-mails to Mr. Anderson and have 
them sent.  Chairman Packish said he was beyond asking, that it was inappropriate to use business e-
mails, and he needed to address the inbox when it fit his schedule.  Member Fehl agreed.



Chairman Packish said that the Hospital Road timeline document had come in handy when he was 
presenting to the Selectmen, as a new neighbor who had not attended any previous meetings objected.  
He had purchased after the new Hospital Road was created, and considered himself a big developer.  He 
saw it as an opportunity to launch lawsuits, which he had done.  He was suing his Realtor as well.  Mr. 
Anderson said that was called moving to the nuisance.  Chairman Packish said the developer said it 
wasn’t disclosed, and his title insurance company should not have insured it.  Chairman Packish said 
everyone seemed to understand that the work they had done was complementary to the Selectmen’s 
work and they would see how it went.  He said he was looking forward to Town Meeting and closing out 
this and Southern Woodlands, leaving them with Town Hall, Zoning and Master Planning to focus on, 
with Streetscape running in the background.

Member Fehl said the CPA committee voted to fund 13 different projects which were now on the 
warrant.  He said FinCom believes they should have a vote in that money and share their vote with the 
Town.  Member Fehl said he didn’t think they had any information on the projects before their votes 
and should not have been involved.  They did not even invite anybody from the CPA committee to be 
present for clarification at their discussions.  To his mind, it was not Town money.  Chairman Packish 
said FinCom should be asking for representation on the CPA.  He also felt the CPA had become an 
illegitimate funding source for ConCom.  Member Fehl agreed.  As this was not on the agenda the 
Chairman decided to end discussion on the topic.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:10 p.m.

Documents used in this meeting:

Agenda

Sign-In sheet

Form A Welch

Plan of Land in Oak Bluffs Prepared for Christopher C. Welch et. Al. march 155, 2016 by Shofield, Barbini,
and Hoehn Inc.


